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The year 2018 was highlighted by improvements 
not just in new pipelines but in distribution 
management and ensuring water quality standards 
are met to bring more water to where it matters--
our consumers. The Annual Report cover shows how 
the Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD) is 
reaching its goals through these efforts.
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MCWD envisions itself to be a progressive 
and economically viable utility firm that provides 
adequate, safe, potable and affordable water and an 
effective sewerage system for Metro Cebu.

We are committed to undertake continuing 
exploration and development activities, aimed at the 
preservation and sustainability of our water resources. We 
must always adhere to sound practices in preserving our 
natural environment.

Our capability to provide proper services must 
continuously improve by designing and managing the 
growth of infrastructure in an innovative, timely, safe and 
cost-effective manner and conforming to internationally 
accepted standards.

We shall operate and maintain our facilities in an 
optimal manner, making total quality an integral part of 
our performance.

It is then indispensable to nurture a highly-
motivated workforce, with a strong spirit of  
collaboration, deeply committed to professionalism, and 
firmly focused on productivity.

The workforce shall be upheld and inspired by a 
competent management team dedicated to the common 
good of MCWD.

All these tasks must be accompanied by sound and 
prudent financial management with overriding goal of 
providing better services to the people of Metro Cebu.

To attain our vision through the fulfillment of our 
mission, we must establish a corporate culture deeply 
characterized by our core values. Everything that we do in 
the office and in the field on a day-to-day basis must be 
imbued by the force of these core values:

Spirit of Service

Anchored in the belief that our major reward in work 
consists in making people happy because we serve them 
well.

Let us be accessible to all our customers and serve 
them with sincere and honest attention.

Our spirit of service must go beyond responding 
to the customers’ complaints by providing them with 
prompt service and accurate information.

Moral  integrity

Built on the reality that human dignity and 
happiness are essentially linked to the practice of   moral  
values in the workplace and elsewhere.

Genuine selflessness will be our prime motive for 
doing our work. This means that we principally desire to 
be a valuable service to people, and not to do our work 
simply because of what we can get in return.

Avoid all use of influence and connections to get 
undue favors for oneself or for others, and refuse to 
influence one another negatively.

Let us encourage a lifestyle that is truly respectful of 

a person’s dignity.
Reject all use of  MCWD resources and time for our own 

personal convenience and financial benefit.

loyalty to our inStitution

Rooted in the intrinsic values of our corporation worthy 
of our love and pride.

Let us align our personal goals with the corporate goals 
of  MCWD. It would be a disservice for any employee of 
MCWD to use undue influence which is in conflict with the 
corporate goals.

Deep concern about the image of MCWD must 
characterize our behavior at all times. We must strive to 
contribute to the good image of MCWD by doing our work 
selflessly with competence and integrity. 

Loyalty to our institution leads us to be mutually 
supportive of all employees and departments of MCWD with 
no exception whatsoever.

profeSSionaliSM

Based on a belief that our God-given talents must be 
made to grow and be constantly improved so that we may be 
of better service to people.

It is  our personal responsibility to build our own 
competence by working hard and demanding a lot from 
ourselves, seeking to upgrade our skills and learn from our 
mistakes.

Let us create and maintain a culture where respect for 
work standards is paramount  and where we help one another 
in striving for excellence. 

 
focuS on perforMance

Linked to our ideal that it is through excellence in our 
performance that we best serve people.

We must find pride and meaning in our own work, 
principally because we have worked productively, constantly 
conscious of the standards we have set for ourselves.

Let us instill a sense of urgency in all that we do. We will 
fight against all forms of procrastination. This will require 
that we take timely and adequate initiative in all our efforts.

Conscious of the need for goal setting at all levels of the 
organization, we need to be forward-looking and review our goals 
often.

Stability in unity 

Founded in the knowledge that our organization will be 
firm and strong, anchored in the spirit of solidarity by which 
we all strive to contribute to the good of all.

The strength  of an organization is found principally in 
the united power of people. We will foster an   atmosphere  
of genuine trust  and confidence in one another based on 
building competence and instilling integrity within the 
organization. Open and honest communication shall likewise 
be encouraged. 

A sense of fairness and justice would guide all our actions 
and thoughts. This requires a  firm respect for the rights  of 
everyone without exception. We must  avoid all forms of envy 
and greed. 

CORE VALUES

MISSION STATEMENT

VISION
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Message from the 
Chairman of the 
BoardMessage

“
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Meet the demand. Improve customer service. Actively interface with local 
government leaders about new water sources.  

These were three tasks that needed to be done for 2018. 

The year started with a newly appointed General Manager at the helm 
and the Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD) Board of Directors had high 
expectations for greater productivity for the year.

The Board of Directors is the policy-making body of water districts as stated 
in Presidential Decree 198. An additional task is to direct management and the 
entire water district to concentrate all their efforts to achieve defined targets they 
believe are imperative in the short, medium and long-term.  

The great Winston Churchill was once asked what he thought was the most 
important attribute of human beings. 

He said PERSPECTIVE… which he defined as man’s ability to examine and 
evaluate facts in order to make decisions that solve problems. 

At MCWD, our task was to first examine how we are doing in fulfilling our 
mandate to serve the water demand of the 2.5 million population of our franchise 
area. A consequent challenge was the formulation of policies and strategies (in 
consideration of our available resources) that will allow us to solve the most 
pressing problems of inadequate water supply and a sub-optimal distribution 
system.

Compounding the problem was an aquifer that was severely compromised 
because of unregulated extraction resulting  in depletion, salination and nitrate 
infection.

An undeniable truth faced us very starkly.  Cebu could no longer depend on 
its groundwater sources.  The ONLY way forward was to tap feasible surface water 
sources and desalinate seawater--projects that were highly capital intensive and 
had long gestation periods. Another consequent truth was that the era of cheap 
water had disappeared forever.  

It was also important to talk to local governments inside or outside MCWD’s 
service area to share their water with us.

Lastly, with several areas experiencing fewer service hours and low pressure, 
it was our responsibility to ensure that customer complaints are handled very 
well. We needed to be better in resolving customer concerns with a renewed 
sense of urgency in these difficult times.

Summing it up… my final appeal to the entire MCWD workforce was “Let us 
all be part of the solution not part of the problem.”

   

Joel Mari Yu

Joel Mari Yu 
Chairman of the Board

“

”

I started serving MCWD as 
director in 1997 and for the first 
time in two decades, subdivisions 
and multi-million companies 
were turning to MCWD for help 
as their private wells were 
starting to dry up.  



Message from the 
General Manager

ENGR. JOSE EUGENIO B. 
SINGSON JR.
General Manager

“

”

I am a firm believer in the 
strength of a motivated human 
resource in effecting change. To 
ensure all personnel have a high 
morale to perform, I pursued 
the reorganization of MCWD 
personnel under the LWUA 
program on the recategorization 
of water districts. 
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With all the challenges that were presented to me when I was appointed as the General Manager of 
Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD) in December 2017, I wasted no time and actively addressed all these 
matters.

Foremost of our challenge was increasing the water supply as the demand continues to increase and 
customers are becoming more active in bringing their complaints across social media channels.

I believe in the inherent power of our employees to find solutions and bring MCWD to new heights amid 
the problems both internal and external or those beyond our control, like government regulations, pollution of 
natural sources and climate change.

OPERATIONS
I pursued my advocacy for a balanced distribution through District Metering Area (DMA). It is our primary 

duty to ensure all customers enjoy continuous water services through the use of the latest technologies 
available. This was coupled with our basic technical knowledge in water distribution that led to the discovery 
and removal of debris in the pipelines that improved the water supply in several areas.

Another major accomplishment this year was providing access to water for residents in northern Cebu 
City and parts of Mandaue City through the installation of a distribution line in Tawason and interconnected 
in Pit-os. As a result, over 5,000 households enjoyed longer service hours and new applicants were able to 
enjoy MCWD’s services. This project was proof that through the help of local government officials and the 
determination and hardwork of the entire MCWD team, we are able to achieve more.

MCWD also commissioned four new wells this year with a total daily production of over 3,000 cubic meters 
(cu. m.) per day.

Additional bulk supply contracts were signed and delivered for the Suba-Basbas and Mambaling injection 
points with a total yield of 12,000 cu. m. daily. Two existing contracts were renewed for the Cabancalan and Pit-
os injection points with a total production of 11,200 cu. m. per day.

Another milestone for the water district was the success of our Denitrification Program. After months of 
trials and with all of us working together, wells with high levels of nitrate were running by July and over 1,000 
households in its surrounding areas began enjoying 24-hour water services.

In line with the contaminationof groundwater sourceswith high nitrate levels and toensure water security 
in Metro Cebu, MCWD strengthened its Septage Management Program (SMP) this year. The operations of our 
Septage Treatment Plant (SpTP) in Cordova was in full swing, serving all the barangays in Mactan Island by the 
end of the year. Also, preparations for the second SpTP in Cebu City were pursued by MCWD the entire year. 
Both the Provincial Government and the Cebu City Government have, in separate signed documents, pledged 
to support the program. A signing ceremony with the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) was 
scheduled before the year ended.

MCWD also directed Cebu Manila Water Development (CMWD) Inc. to address the turbidity of its source 
during heavy rains to address supply interruptions that affect a big portion of MCWD’s service area. CMWD will 
improve its system as well as ensure a more reliable supply for MCWD’s consumers.

But long-term solutions to the supply problem are bulk supply projects that MCWD has to continue 
pursuing or new ones that need to be explored to serve the growing needs of Metro Cebu water consumers. 
Talks on the Mananga Dam and the desalination plant for Mactan island have started.  

MCWD is in constant coordination with Danao City for its 20,000 cubic per meter per day bulk supply 
project which is experiencing delays. MCWD also discussed with Compostela regarding the possible use of the 
water district’s wells under terms that are beneficial to all stakeholders.

FINANCIAl
What benefits the water district is also beneficial to the public it serves. This year, we visited 

the Local Water Utilities Administration to settle the issue on the difference in the foreign exchange 
years ago. MCWD saved P10 million after LWUA acceded to the water district’s request. 

MCWD also decided to review its discount scheme as part of its comprehensive evaluation of 
its water tariff. 

CuSTOMER SERvICE
Since I was newly appointed to the position, I made sure to pay courtesy visits to the leaders of 

the local governments in our service area to know how MCWD can serve their constituents better 
and to present the water district’s plans and projects. 

Immediate changes in MCWD’s customer policies were also made to make transactions 
simpler and easier. The Visa credit card payment system became a reality in November.

ADMINISTRATION
I am a firm believer in the strength of a motivated human resource in effecting change. 

To ensure all personnel have a high morale to perform, I pursued the reorganization of MCWD 
personnel under the LWUA program on the recategorization of water districts. 

To better MCWD’s public image, we emphasized the need for improvements in project 
implementation, like the use of Personal Protective Equipment, proper signages and lights and the 
compliance of private contractors to MCWD’s standards. 

A big project that we started this year also includes the full automation of MCWD’s systems in 
parallel with its ISO Certification. A newly improved Geographical Information System was deployed 
to be more responsive to the needs of a growing company.

All these efforts are for an improved version of MCWD. There is still so much to be done and 
we will not stop to be a better, more efficient and reliable water service provider for Metro Cebu. 

ENGR. JOSE EUGENIO B. SINGSON JR.
General Manager
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January february MarcH
MCWD Laboratory attains an “Excellent” 
rating from the Department of Health

Over 200 residents from 13 barangays in 
Cebu and Talisay cities benefit from the 
P3,000 discount and zero downpayment 
promo in Robinsons Galleria

A public hearing is held to give way to 
the installation of new pipes in Barangay 
Pagsabungan, Mandaue City 

Personnel from Cebu City Division for the 
Welfare of the Urban Poor learn more about 
MCWD-Vitens Evides International Water 
for Life promo to increase the program’s 
reach to the targeted beneficiaries

Consumers in some areas of Lapu-
Lapu City enjoy an additional supply 
as private supplier Abejo Waters Corp. 
operates its new facility in Suba-
Basbas with an initial delivery of 1,500 
cubic meters per day

MCWD technical teams meet with 
contractors of the Danao Bulk Supply 
project which will be sourced from the 
Tangon River

As part of rewarding the most 
participative barangays in the Water 
for Life program, Vitens Evides 
International Project Director Patrick 
Egan and MCWD’s Charmaine 
Rodriguez-Kara turn over a mini-library 
to Barangay Mambaling, Cebu City

2 new managers—Edgar Donoso and 
Atty. Jorge Gabriente--join MCWD as 
Assistant General Manager for Finance 
and Assistant General Manager for 
Technical Services, respectively

MCWD General Manager Jose 
Eugenio Singson Jr. is a resource 
speaker during the press conference 
to launch the 4th International River 
Summit in Mandaue City

Innovations increase the production capacity of 
Tisa Filter Plant from 4,000 cubic meters per day to 
6,500 cu. m. per day

A well in MCWD’s Tisa facility produces an 
additional 360 cubic meters per day 

Mandaue City officials learn about 
MCWD’s Septage Management Program 
by visiting its Septage Treatment Plant in 
San Miguel, Cordova

MCWD Chairman Joel Mari Yu receives 
an award as outstanding individual 
for his “invaluable contribution to 
Cebu’s economy especially in the call 
center industry” from the Cebu City 
Government during its 81st Charter Day 
celebration 

MCWD teams, led by MCWD General Manager Jose 
Eugenio Singson Jr., visit the Tagba-o River to 
check its potential as a surface water source

MCWD General Manager Jose Eugenio Singson Jr. 
leads the Executive Committee in paying a courtesy 
visit to Liloan Mayor Ma. Christina Garcia-Frasco

July auguSt SepteMber
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april May June
MCWD and its grant partner Vitens Evides 
International launch a water system with fire 
hydrant in Guizo-Mantuyong, Mandaue City 
with special guest Vice Mayor Carlo Fortuna 

In celebration of Earth Day, the local media 
tours MCWD’s Septage Treatment Plant in 
San Miguel, Cordova

Representatives from different 
departments inspect a proposed well 
site in Sitio Rotunda, Barangay Banilad, 
Cebu City

Assistant General Manager Noel Dalena 
presents “Water Security on Water Supply 
(Metro Cebu Case)”during one of the 
sessions at the 4th International River 
Summit in Radisson Blu

The Japan International Cooperating 
Agency team updates Gov. Hilario 
Davide III and MCWD management on 
the status of the proposed Septage 
Treatment Plant they wish to fund 
through a grant

MCWD personnel install a pipe on 
Bag-ong Dan, Liloan

MCWD joins the re-launch of Larsian 
Barbecue place after providing technical 
assistance to improve its water supply 

MCWD representatives attend the first 
Septage Management Board meeting in 
Cordova

Provincial Board Member Celestino 
Martinez presents to MCWD the PB’s 
resolution authorizing Cebu Gov. Hilario 
Davide III to sign an agreement with the 
Cebu City Government  and MCWD for 
the use of a lot in the North Reclamation 
Area for MCWD’s second Septage 
Treatment Facility

Department of Public Works and Highways 
start dredging activities in MCWD’s 
Jaclupan facility to improve its capacity to 
catch run-off water from the Mananga River

MCWD Board of Directors and 
managers pay Mandaue City Mayor 
Luigi Quisumbing a courtesy visit

MCWD teams inspect the newly 
installed Fiber Reinforced 
Plastic Tanks that are part of the 
Denitrification process to make 
contaminated water potable again

Managers attend a seminar in 
preparation for MCWD’s ISO 
9001:2015 certification

Cebu City and Talisay City consumers 
get more water as private supplier 
Pilipinas Water Resources Inc. delivers an 
additional 5,000 cubic meters per day 

The completion of expansion lines in 
Compostela and Tayud, Consolacion mean 
additional new service connections in the 
north can be accepted

MCWD General Manager Jose Eugenio 
Singson Jr. attends the organizers’ 
meeting for the International River 
Summit spearheaded by the Mandaue City 
Government and the Archdiocese of Cebu

october noveMber DeceMber

CHEERS. MCWD, Mandaue City, VEI, Water for 
Life, Barangay officials of  Barangays Guizo and 
Mantuyong and guests cheer as the water flows 
from the newly installed fire hydrant during the 
inauguration of the MCWD-VEI  water system. 
Mandaue City Vice Mayor Carlo Fortuna (fourth from 
right bending), Water and Life Board of Trustees 
(back row), AGM Noel Dalena (second from left) and 
Tubig Pag-Asa Country Director Clara Bouchet-
Doumenq (leftmost) lead the inauguration.                  

MCWD managers pay Compostela 
Mayor Joel Quiño a courtesy visit



corporate
and social 
responsibility programs
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MCWD sent a team to get water samples 
from the Evacuation Centers and the water 
sources of the landslide victims in Naga City 
and declared the sources safe. Following the 
disaster that killed 72 people, reports of the 
contamination of their water sources surfaced. 
MCWD personnel coordinated with Mayor 
Kristine Chiong to assure of the water quality 
test. (2 photos, plus photo with Mayor Chiong)

HELP FOR LANDSLIDE VICTIMS

KAMPUTHAW FIRE VICTIMS. Gerald Landason 
(left),  a resident of Kamputhaw for 12 years  
and one of the fire victims enjoyed the free 
water provided by MCWD   for one month. While 
Menchi Beldad (right), single, was very thankful 
to MCWD for the free water which they can use 
for washing, bathing and cooking. 

BARANGAY KAMPUTHAW FIRE 
VICTIMS ENJOY FREE WATER 
FROM MCWD

MCWD personnel installed nine communal 
faucets a day after the blaze for use by the 
victims for 30 days for free, while a child enjoys 
taking a bath after a fire incident destroyed 
homes in Brgy. Ermita, Cebu City. 

FREE WATER TO FIRE VICTIMS 
IN BARANGAY ERMITA

MCWD GIVES FREE WATER TO FIRE 
VICTIMS IN SAWANG CALERO, PASIL

FREE WATER. Ann-ann Uy, a fire victim in Sawang 
Calero, does her laundry using free water from MCWD.     
The water district installed six faucets with six water 
meters on Feb. 2, which the victims can use for free 
for one month.  On the other hand, 18 faucets and 15 
meters were also installed in Lawis, Pasil on Jan. 22. 
Meters were installed to record the consumption of 
water used by the victims.  

disaster
response

FREE COLD WATER FOR EVERYONE. 
MCWD provides free cold drinking water 
to beneficiaries of ABS-CBN’s Halad Sa 
Kapamilya at the Cebu Technological 
University campus as part of its corporate 
social responsibility 

MCWD WITH ITS PARTNER 
KOOLER INDUSTRIES, INC.   
GIVES FREE COLD WATER

Community 
outreach

MCWD GIVES FREE COLD WATER TO 
SINULOG PARTICIPANTS, DEVOTEES 
AND SPECTATORS

FREE COLD WATER. A devotee thanked MCWD 
employee/volunteer Cesar Tabar as he enjoys the 
free cold drinking water from MCWD’s water booth 
during the Solemn Foot Procession of the image of 
Sr. Sto. Niño. 

FREE WATER FOR FIRE VICTIMS. Hilda 
Amnestad, one of the victims of the fire that 
hit Sitio Cahipa, Hipodromo, Cebu City, enjoys 
the free water provided by MCWD for 30 days 
for  their use in cooking, drinking, bathing  and 
washing.  MCWD gives free water to victims 
of fires within its service area as part of its 
corporate social responsibility program.

FREE WATER FOR HIPODROMO
FIRE VICTIMS

MCWD installs free drinking water stations in 
public cemeteries on All Saints’ Day and All 
Soul’s Day.  Rutchel Silva of  the Production and 
Distribution Department mans the free drinking 
water station of MCWD  installed in one of 
the  public cemeteries in Cebu City during the 
observance of All Saints’ Day and All Souls’ Day. 



Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD) celebrates 
Global Handwashing Day 2018 with partners from  
Vitens Evides International represented by Project 
Manager Patrick Egan (left), Maribago Elementary 
School Principal Basilio Aying ( center) and  Cebu 
Institute of Technology-University (CIT-U) Industrial 
Engineering Council volunteers. Community Relations 
and External Affairs Department Manager Charmaine 
Kara demonstrates the proper handwashing to  one 
of the 250 Grade 1 pupils of Maribago Elementary 
School, Lapu-Lapu City. The  kids  were also taught  
about  storing rainwater using the Android-run mobile 
application, the Water Warrior, of CIT-U. 

GLOBAL HANDWASHING DAY

INSTALLATION DEMO.  Participants of the 
Training on Plumbing observe as MCWD’s Service 
Connection Installation Department headed by 
OIC-DM John Neville Macabinta demonstrate the 
steps of installing a water service connection.  

Parents acquired basic knowledge and skills in 
plumbing when Metropolitan Cebu Water District 
(MCWD) in coordination with its youth club 
partner Project Aquaria, conducted a “Training on 
Plumbing with Labangon Bliss Elementary School 
Parents” on February 9, 2018.

MCWD TEACHES PARENTS OF SCHOOL 
KIDS BASIC PLUMBING, PROVIDES PIPES

HANDWASHING. In celebration of the Nutrition 
Month, the Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD) 
holds a  handwashing activity and also promotional 
activities to increase service connections in Tigbao, 
Pit-os, Talamban, San Jose, Bacayan and Tawason  
for  Tubig Pa More  program in Ananias G. Ouano 
Sports Complex, Banilad , Cebu City with over  two 
hundred pupils from Banilad Elementary School. 
MCWD’s   Community Relations and External Affairs 
Department manager Charmaine R. Kara welcomes 
Banilad Barangay Councilors Billy Ouano and 
Adelaida Ouano to the event.

MCWD CELEBRATES NUTRITION 
MONTH WITH KIDS OF BANILAD 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

SINK DONATION

MCWD Community Relations and External Affairs 
Department (CREAD)  Manager Charmaine Kara and 
Labangon Bliss Elementary School Principal Ricardo 
Aman (both at the center) lead the ribbon cutting of 
the Handwashing Sink Project of MCWD and Project 
Aquaria.  Also present  are (from left) school teacher 
Enrique Entise, CIT-U Project Aquaria’s Erlyn Rago, 
MCWD Community Relations Division Manager Edna 
Inocando, CIT-U Industrial Engineering advisers 
Anna Marie Arnoco and Aries Rivero and CIT-U 
engineering student Issah P. Rolloque.           

Miss Cebu 2016 and environmental advocate 
Gabriele Raine Baljak  speaks before the  
Cordova National High School students  during 
the MCWD World Water Day 2018 Youth Forum in 
Cordova, Cebu.
This year’s World Water Day celebration themed 
as “The Answer is in Nature” focuses on how to 
reduce floods, droughts and water pollution.  

MCWD HOLDS WORLD WATER 
DAY FORUM WITH CORDOVA 
HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS
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WATER FOR RELOCATION SITE

MCWD representatives meet the displaced 
families in a relocation site in Barangay Quiot, 
Cebu City to discuss the schedule of water truck 
delivery since MCWD will provide them with free 
potable water.           
MCWD committed to provide a 5-cubic meter 
water truck to deliver water twice a week to the 
families who were displaced due to a demolition 
in Barangay Quiot, Sitio Tangke, Alaska, Brgy. 
Mambaling and the fire victims from Barangays 
Pasil and Sawang Calero.

MCWD HOLDS MEDICAL
OUTREACH ACTIVITY IN
MANDAUE CITY 

MEDICAL OUTREACH. Metropolitan Cebu 
Water District (MCWD) in partnership with 
Vitens Evides International (VEI), Philippine 
Association of Medical Technologists (PAMET)-
Cebu Chapter, Philippine Red Cross and the 
Department of Health (DOH) hold its second 
medical outreach  in Barangay Labogon, 
Mandaue City. More than a hundred residents 
availed of the free dental and laboratory 
services offered like hepa B  and HIV tests, 
glucose and cholesterol tests and blood typing, 
among others. The activity is in line with 
the pro-poor water supply project of MCWD 
and VEI, which is called  Water Supply Cebu 
(WatSup Cebu)  also known as Tubig Pa More  
to increase  MCWD’s  service connections

BIG BROTHER TO WATER DISTRICTS  

Daanbantayan Water District GM Gregorio 
Montana and Administrative Officer Manuel 
Linabog thank GM Eugene Singson for the 
generator set donated by MCWD.

MINI LIBRARY FOR BARANGAY 

Newly-elected Mambaling SK Chairperson 
Sharmaine Maloloy-on and daycare pupils receive 
the mini library showcase from MCWD and Vitens 
Evides International. The barangay had the 
most number of applicants during the recent 
TubigPaMore promo.

improving
Lives

empowering 
Communities

environmentaL 
protection

FREE SEEDLINGS AT BOOTH 

MCWD’s Booth at the 4th 
International River Summit exhibit 
area in Radisson Blu draws 
participants with its free seedlings. 

As tokens of appreciation for their loyalty to 
the water district after all these years, the 
Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD) through 
the Community Relations and External Affairs 
Department (CREAD) gave  100 eco bags to the 
first 100 paying consumers on Feb. 1, 2018, in 
time for  MCWD’s 43rd anniversary celebration. 
MCWD gives out anniversary items as part of its 
corporate social responsibility at the same time in 
promoting environmental awareness. 

100 EARLY
BIRDS RECEIVE 
ECO BAGS 

MAHIGA RIVER PARK 

Cebu Archbishop Jose Palma and 
Cebu City Councilor and First Lady 
Margot Osmena cut the ribbon 
for the launching of the Mahiga 
River Park. AGM Edgar Donoso 
represented MCWD in the event.   



MCWD
completed 
projects in  2018

P17.346m

P10.054m

P101.531m
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INFRASTRuCTuRE
PROJECTS

ProPosed PiPeline rehabilitation Project on calero 
road, barangay calero, liloan, cebu
CONTRACTOR: ARDC ConStRUCtion AnD SUPPlieS

ProPosed Ø200mm & Ø150mm di PiPeline exPansion in 
hidden View and Villa leyson, barangay 
bacayan, cebu city
CONTRACTOR: JFAP ConStRUCtion

ProPosed PiPeline exPansion under hydraulic 
area 1 Package 6 in brgy. ibo-buaya-mactan road, 
laPu-laPu city, cebu
CONTRACTOR: JFAP ConStRUCtion, Rex e. MoRAleS 
ConStRUCtion, A.l. GAntUAnGCo ConStRUCtion, 
oPtiMUS enGineeRinG AnD ConStRUCtion Joint VentURe



MCWD
completed 
projects in  2018

WATER SYSTEM PROJECTS   
    

P10.054m

P101.531m

 P3.052m

 P3.566m 

 P3.303m
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ProPosed PiPelines exPansion under 
hydraulic area 1 Package 5 
CONTRACTOR:M.E. SiCAT CONSTRuCTiON iNC. 
iN BRgy. PAjO & PuSOk, LAPu-LAPu CiTy

ProPosed PiPeline exPansion for modena 
subdiVision in barangay basak-babag road, 
laPu-laPu city
CONTRACTOR: DSJP ConStRUCtion

ProPosed PiPeline rehabilitation in bulacao, 
Pardo, corner Villa bulsita  in bulacao, Pardo, 
corner Villa bulsita
CONTRACTOR: A.l. GAntUAnGCo ConStRUCtion

P94.127m

P10.044m

P14.734m

ProPosed water distribution system for 
tiara del sur subdiVision  
dawis road, talisay city
OwNER/dEvELOPER: ChARlie DynAMiC PRoPeRty 
VentUReS, inC.

ProPosed water distribution system for 
Vista de bahia subdiVision
tayud, consolacion
OwNER/dEvELOPER: MCJR ReAlty & 
DeVeloPMent CoRPoRAtion

ProPosed water distribution system for 
Villa azalea subdiVision (Phase 2b) 
cotcot, liloan
OwNER/dEvELOPER: MeGACRown ReAlty AnD 
DeVeloPMent CoRPoRAtion



FlOWMETER ASSEMBlY
AND vAulT

IN-HOuSE INFRASTRuCTuRE 
PROJECTS

ProP.water distribution system for fontana heights 
subdiVision (Phase 2)  cubacub, mandaue city
CONTRACTOR: AlPA lAnD inC.

ProP. Ø150mm  surface flow meter for 
sundance condominium in banawa, cebu city
CONTRACTOR: woRlDwiDe Steel GRoUP inC.

ProPosed water distribution system for 
adamah homes north in sitio manga, jugan, consolacion
CONTRACTOR: DAMARU PRoPeRty VentUReS CoRPoRAtion

ProP. Ø75mm  surface flow meter for florence by aldea 
Premier subdiVision in cubacub, mandaue city
CONTRACTOR: 77 liVinG SPACeS inC.

ProP. Ø150mm  surface flow meter for 32 sanson 
sanson road, lahug, cebu city
CONTRACTOR: RoCkwell lAnD CoRPoRAtion

ProPosed Ø100mm x 293lm di PiPeline exPansion along 
echiVarre st.under Vitens eVides international (Vei) 
Project, mantuyong mandaue city
dESigNER: enGR. GylniS M. AlinGASA

ProPosed site deVeloPment for cordoVa sePtage 
treatment facility (Phase2) cordoVa, cebu
dESigNER:ENgR. MONTE CARLA S. RAgASAjO

ProPosed Ø100mm x 240lm di PiPeline exPansion for 
urban Ville homeowners association under Vei Project, 
brgy.binaliw, cebu city
dESigNER: enGR. ChRiStoPheR n. GetUtUA

ProPosed Ø150mm x 183lm di PiPeline rehabilitation 
along salVador extension labangon, cebu city
dESigNER:ENgR. Joel Roy l. oMeGA

ProPosed Ø200mm uPVc & di PiPeline exPansion for 
tawason under Vitens Project, brgy. tawason, mandaue 
city, cebu
dESigNER: enGR. Monte CARlA S. RAGASAJo

ProP.Ø150mm x 290lm di PiPeline rehabilitation Project 
cabatingan, cogon, comPostela
dESigNER: enGR. GylniS M. AlinGASA 

ProPosed Ø150mm x 160lm di PiPeline exPansion Project 
along sawsawan road under Vei Project, brgy.san roQue, 
talisay city
dESigNER: enGR. Joel Roy l. oMeGA

ProPosed Ø150mm x 158ln.m uPVc interconnecting 
PiPeline and Ø150mm surface flow meter for anami 
homes north, jugan, consolacion
dESigNER: enGR. GylniS M. AlinGASA 

P 1.205m

P 549,924

P 1,727m

P 1.140m

P 8.048m

P3.373m

P3.437m

P2.445m

P19.620m

P3.434m

P4.366m

P3.369m

P1.664m
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 
 
The Management of METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT (“Water District) is responsible for 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached 
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial 
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
 
In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Water District’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Water 
District or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so. 
 
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Water District’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, and submits the same to the 
creditors and Local Water Utilities Administration (LWUA). 
 
 
The Commission on Audit (COA), in pursuance of its mandate under Section 2, Article IX-D of the 
Philippine Constitution and pertinent provisions of Presidential Decree 1445, is tasked to audit the 
financial statements of the Water District in accordance with applicable generally accepted auditing 
standards and expresses its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
LIAN G. BALBUENA    ENGR. JOSE EUGENIO B. SINGSON JR. 
OIC - AGM for Finance    General Manager                              
                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of the Metropolitan Cebu Water District is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 
as at December 31, 2018, including the additional components attached thereto in accordance with the prescribed fi-
nancial reporting framework indicated therein. The responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material statement whether 
due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements before such statements are issued to the regu-
lators, creditors and other users.
The Commission on Audit has audited the financial statements of the Metropolitan Cebu Water District in accordance 
with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon 
completion of such audit, in its report to the Board of Directors.

JOEL MARI S. YU
Chairman of the Board

             EDGAR H. DONOSO
Assistant General Manager for Finance 

ENGR. JOSE EUGENIO B. SINGSON JR.
General Manager

NOTE* 2018 2017

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 1,380,123,266               1,241,096,372                
Other Investments 7 86,530                           86,530                             
Receivables 8 365,230,608                  326,428,511                    
Inventories 9 212,789,305                  233,276,532                    
Other Current Assets 13 47,002,597                    35,340,705                      

Total Current Assets 2,005,232,305               1,836,228,650                

Non-Current Assets
Investment Property 10 29,541,631                    25,431,033                      
Property, Plant and Equipment 11 3,061,179,059               2,182,576,846                
Intangible Assets 12 32,869,615                    28,792,524                      
Deferred Tax Assets 5,687,136                      5,522,859                        
Other Non-Current Assets 13 330,534,967                  347,435,896                    

Total Non-Current Assets 3,459,812,409               2,589,759,158                

Total Assets 5,465,044,715               4,425,987,808                

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 14 208,136,993                  182,608,750                    
Inter-Agency Payables 15 99,167,790                    86,154,363                      
Trust Liabilities 16 6,156,061                      7,070,267                        
Deferred Credits/Unearned Income 17 257,600,296                  54,010,735                      
Provisions 41,657,473                    -                                   
Other Payables 18 139,363,706                  134,245,976                    

Total Current Liabilities 752,082,318                  464,090,091                    

Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 14 402,434,296                  540,880,053                    
Trust Liabilities 16 388,875,157                  326,614,031                    
Other Payables 18 191,931,764                  217,471,801                    

Total Non-Current Liabilities 983,241,218                  1,084,965,885                

Total Liabilites

Revaluation Surplus 818,465,818                  218,119,766                    
Retained Earnings/(Deficit) 2,911,255,361               2,658,812,067                

Tota Equity 3,729,721,179               2,876,931,833                

Total Liabilities and Equity 5,465,044,715               4,425,987,808                

-                                 
-                                   

EQUITY

LIABILITIES

ASSETS

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

Total Equity



MCWD ANNUAL REPORT 201814

2018 2017

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,380,123,266                  1,241,096,372         

Cash on Hand 9,685,043                         5,655,297               
Cash-Collecting Officers 8,735,043                         4,720,897               
Petty Cash 950,000                            934,400                  

Cash in Bank - Local Currency 373,138,750                     489,984,383            
Cash in Bank - Local Currency, Current Account 371,123,938                     485,610,026            
Cash in Bank - Local Currency, Savings Account 2,014,812                         4,374,357               

Cash in Bank - Foreign Currency 7,047,040                         7,112,132               
Cash in Bank - Foreign Currency, Savings Account 7,047,040                         7,112,132               

Cash Equivalents 990,252,432                     738,344,559            
Investment in Time Deposit - Local Currency 990,252,432                     738,344,559            

Other Investments 86,530                              86,530                    

Other Investments 86,530                              86,530                    
Investment in Stocks 86,530                              86,530                    
Allowance for Impairment - Investment in Stocks -                                   -                          
Net Value- Investments in Stocks 86,530                              86,530                    

Receivables 365,230,608                     326,428,511            

Loans and Receivable Accounts 320,088,277                     288,401,700            
Accounts Receivable 329,932,044                     297,496,079            
Allowance for Impairment-Accounts Receivable (12,052,498)                      (10,858,999)            
Net Value - Account Receivable 317,879,546                     286,637,080            
Interest Receivable 2,208,731                         1,764,620               
Allowance for Impairment - Interest Receivable -                                   -                          
Net Value - Interest Receivable 2,208,731                         1,764,620               

Other Receivables 45,142,331                       38,026,812             
Other Receivables 45,142,331                       38,026,812             
Allowance for Impairment - Other Receivables -                                   -                          
Net Value -Other Receivable 45,142,331                       38,026,812             

Inventories 212,789,305                     233,276,532            

Inventory Held for Consumption 212,789,305                     233,276,532            
Office Supplies Inventory 9,937,295                         7,581,945               
Allowance for Impairment - Office Supplies Inventory -                                   -                          
Net Value - Office Supplies Inventory 9,937,295                         7,581,945               
Chemical and Filtering Materials 907,576                            1,381,336               
Allowance for Impairment - Chemical and Filtering Materials -                                   -                          
Net Value - Chemical and Filtering Materials 907,576                            1,381,336               
Other Supplies and Materials Inventory 201,944,433                     224,313,252            
Allowance for Impairment - Other Supplies and Materials Inventory -                                   -                          
Net Value - Other Supplies and Materials Inventory 201,944,433                     224,313,252            

Other Current Assets 47,002,597                       35,340,705             

Advances 646,049                            1,087,825               
Advances to Officers and Employees 646,049                            1,087,825               

Prepayments 46,356,548                       34,252,881             
Advances to Contractors 25,030,034                       32,205,529             
Prepaid Rent (80,916)                             48,501                    
Prepaid Insurance 1,315,403                         1,292,583               
Input Tax (12,848)                             25,827                    
Other Prepayments 20,104,875                       680,441                  

Total Current Assets 2,005,232,305                  1,836,228,650         

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

ASSETS
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

Non-Current Assets
Investment Property 29,541,631                       25,431,033             

Land and Buildings 29,541,631                       25,431,033             
Investment Property, Buildings 47,659,500                       39,735,989             
Accumulated Impairment Losses-investment Property,  Buildings (18,117,869)                      (14,304,956)            
Net Value-Investment Property, Buildings 29,541,631                       25,431,033             

Property, Plant and Equipment 3,061,179,059                  2,182,576,846         

Land 895,381,281                     381,283,271            
Land 895,381,281                     381,283,271            
Accumulated impairment Losses-Land -                                   -                          
Net Value - Land 895,381,281                     381,283,271            

Infrastructure Assets 1,326,233,062                  897,162,249            
Plant-Utility Plant in Service (UPIS) 3,455,353,777                  2,937,311,898         
Accumulated Depreciation-Plant (UP IS) (2,129,120,716)                 (2,040,149,648)       
Accumulated Impairment Losses-Plant (UP IS) -                                   -                          
Net Value-Plant-Utility Plant in Service (UPIS) 1,326,233,062                  897,162,249            

Buildings and Other Structures 409,770,102                     147,518,334            
Buildings 400,991,172                     287,144,207            
Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings (189,480,718)                    (144,983,504)          
Accu. Impairment Losses-Buildings -                          
Net Value - Buildings 211,510,455                     142,160,703            
Water Plant, Structure and Improvements 362,193,297                     33,142,169             
Accumulated Depreciation - Water Plant, Structure and Improvements (172,637,179)                    (30,051,516)            
Accu. Impairment Losses- Water Plant, Structure and Improvements -                          
Net Value-Water Plant, Structure and Improvements 189,556,118                     3,090,653               
Other Structures 14,692,259                       5,516,910               
Accumulated Depreciation - Other Structures (5,988,730)                        (3,249,931)              
Accu. Impairment Losses-Other Structures -                          
Net Value - Other Structures 8,703,529                         2,266,979               

Machinery and Equipment 31,553,803                       32,974,416             
Information & Communication Technology Equipment 136,469,780                     130,087,116            
Accumulated Depreciation - Information & Communication Technology Equipment (115,186,290)                    (108,985,653)          
Accu Impairment Losses- Information & Communication Technology Equipment -                          
Net Value - Information and Communication Technology Equipment 21,283,490                       21,101,462             
Communication Equipment 48,272,229                       48,272,229             
Accumulated Depreciation - Communication Equipment (38,001,916)                      (36,399,275)            
Accu Impairment Losses- Communication Equipment -                          
Net Value - Communication Equipment 10,270,313                       11,872,954             

Transportation Equipment 32,369,858                       38,928,522             
Motor Vehicles 185,164,608                     183,317,241            
Accumulated Depreciation - Motor Vehicles (152,794,750)                    (144,388,719)          
Accu Impairment Losses- Motor Vehicles -                          
Net Value - Motor Vehicles 32,369,858                       38,928,522             

Furnitures, Fixtures and Books 13,263,326                       4,667,121               
Furniture, Fixtures 47,459,107                       35,577,579             
Accumulated Depreciation - Furniture & Fixture (34,328,449)                      (30,975,197)            
Accu. Impairment Losses-Furniture & Fixture -                          
Net Value - Furnitures, Fixtures 13,130,658                       4,602,382               
Books 447,826                            359,369                  
Accumulated Depreciation - Books (315,158)                           (294,630)                 
Accu. Impairment Losses-Books -                          
Net Value - Books 132,668                            64,739                    

Other Property, Plant and Equipment 135,125,515                     90,510,488             
Other Property, Plant and Equipment 466,085,657                     402,156,433            
Accumulated Depreciation-Other Property, Plant and Equipment (330,960,142)                    (311,645,944)          
Accumulated Impairment Losses-Other Property, Plant and Equipment -                                   -                          
Net Value - Other Property, Plant and Equipment 135,125,515                     90,510,488             

2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018
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Net Value - Books 132,668                            64,739                    

Other Property, Plant and Equipment 135,125,515                     90,510,488             
Other Property, Plant and Equipment 466,085,657                     402,156,433            
Accumulated Depreciation-Other Property, Plant and Equipment (330,960,142)                    (311,645,944)          
Accumulated Impairment Losses-Other Property, Plant and Equipment -                                   -                          
Net Value - Other Property, Plant and Equipment 135,125,515                     90,510,488             

2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

Non-Current Assets
Investment Property 29,541,631                       25,431,033             

Land and Buildings 29,541,631                       25,431,033             
Investment Property, Buildings 47,659,500                       39,735,989             
Accumulated Impairment Losses-investment Property,  Buildings (18,117,869)                      (14,304,956)            
Net Value-Investment Property, Buildings 29,541,631                       25,431,033             

Property, Plant and Equipment 3,061,179,059                  2,182,576,846         

Land 895,381,281                     381,283,271            
Land 895,381,281                     381,283,271            
Accumulated impairment Losses-Land -                                   -                          
Net Value - Land 895,381,281                     381,283,271            

Infrastructure Assets 1,326,233,062                  897,162,249            
Plant-Utility Plant in Service (UPIS) 3,455,353,777                  2,937,311,898         
Accumulated Depreciation-Plant (UP IS) (2,129,120,716)                 (2,040,149,648)       
Accumulated Impairment Losses-Plant (UP IS) -                                   -                          
Net Value-Plant-Utility Plant in Service (UPIS) 1,326,233,062                  897,162,249            

Buildings and Other Structures 409,770,102                     147,518,334            
Buildings 400,991,172                     287,144,207            
Accumulated Depreciation - Buildings (189,480,718)                    (144,983,504)          
Accu. Impairment Losses-Buildings -                          
Net Value - Buildings 211,510,455                     142,160,703            
Water Plant, Structure and Improvements 362,193,297                     33,142,169             
Accumulated Depreciation - Water Plant, Structure and Improvements (172,637,179)                    (30,051,516)            
Accu. Impairment Losses- Water Plant, Structure and Improvements -                          
Net Value-Water Plant, Structure and Improvements 189,556,118                     3,090,653               
Other Structures 14,692,259                       5,516,910               
Accumulated Depreciation - Other Structures (5,988,730)                        (3,249,931)              
Accu. Impairment Losses-Other Structures -                          
Net Value - Other Structures 8,703,529                         2,266,979               

Machinery and Equipment 31,553,803                       32,974,416             
Information & Communication Technology Equipment 136,469,780                     130,087,116            
Accumulated Depreciation - Information & Communication Technology Equipment (115,186,290)                    (108,985,653)          
Accu Impairment Losses- Information & Communication Technology Equipment -                          
Net Value - Information and Communication Technology Equipment 21,283,490                       21,101,462             
Communication Equipment 48,272,229                       48,272,229             
Accumulated Depreciation - Communication Equipment (38,001,916)                      (36,399,275)            
Accu Impairment Losses- Communication Equipment -                          
Net Value - Communication Equipment 10,270,313                       11,872,954             

Transportation Equipment 32,369,858                       38,928,522             
Motor Vehicles 185,164,608                     183,317,241            
Accumulated Depreciation - Motor Vehicles (152,794,750)                    (144,388,719)          
Accu Impairment Losses- Motor Vehicles -                          
Net Value - Motor Vehicles 32,369,858                       38,928,522             

Furnitures, Fixtures and Books 13,263,326                       4,667,121               
Furniture, Fixtures 47,459,107                       35,577,579             
Accumulated Depreciation - Furniture & Fixture (34,328,449)                      (30,975,197)            
Accu. Impairment Losses-Furniture & Fixture -                          
Net Value - Furnitures, Fixtures 13,130,658                       4,602,382               
Books 447,826                            359,369                  
Accumulated Depreciation - Books (315,158)                           (294,630)                 
Accu. Impairment Losses-Books -                          
Net Value - Books 132,668                            64,739                    

Other Property, Plant and Equipment 135,125,515                     90,510,488             
Other Property, Plant and Equipment 466,085,657                     402,156,433            
Accumulated Depreciation-Other Property, Plant and Equipment (330,960,142)                    (311,645,944)          
Accumulated Impairment Losses-Other Property, Plant and Equipment -                                   -                          
Net Value - Other Property, Plant and Equipment 135,125,515                     90,510,488             
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

Construction in Progress 217,482,112                     589,532,443            
Construction in Progress-Infrastructure 187,745,975                     553,303,435            
Construction in Progress- Building & Other Structures 29,736,137                       36,229,008             

Intangible Assets 32,869,615                       28,792,524             

Intangible Assets 28,333,221                       23,451,130             
Computer Software 62,535,738                       45,488,024             
Accumulated Amortization - Computer Software (34,202,518)                      (22,036,894)            
Accumulated Impairment Losses - Computer System -                          
Net Value - Computer Software 28,333,221                       23,451,130             

Development in Progress 4,536,395                         5,341,394               
Development in Progress- Computer System 4,536,395                         5,341,394               

Deferred Tax Assets 5,687,136                         5,522,859               
Deferred tax Assets 5,687,136                         5,522,859               

Other Non-Current Assets 330,534,967                     347,435,896            

Deposits 223,113,445                     224,862,330            
Guaranty Deposits 223,113,445                     224,862,330            

Restricted Fund 77,424,714                       85,424,714             
Restricted Fund 77,424,714                       85,424,714             

Other Assets 29,996,809                       37,148,853             
Unamortized Portion of Retirement Benefits 29,996,809                       37,148,853             

Total Non-Current Assets 3,459,812,409                  2,589,759,158         

Total Assets 5,465,044,715                  4,425,987,808         

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities 208,136,993                     182,608,750            

Payables 67,123,372                       61,934,870             
Accounts Payable 63,408,835                       59,529,790             
Due to Officers and Employees-Disallowances 3,714,536                         2,405,080               

Loans Payable 138,445,757                     118,476,810            
Loans Payable-Domestic 138,445,757                     118,476,810            

Tax Refunds Payable 2,567,865                         2,197,070               
Tax Refunds Payable 2,567,865                         2,197,070               

Inter-Agency Payables 99,167,790                       86,154,363             

Inter-Agency Payables 99,167,790                       86,154,363             
Due to BIR 22,866,692                       13,878,801             
Due to GSIS 4,182,538                         4,027,189               
Due to Pag-IBIG 515,706                            580,572                  
Due to PhilHealth 386,011                            351,013                  
Due to LGUs 71,216,844                       67,316,789             

Trust Liabilities 6,156,061                         7,070,267               

Trust Liabilities 6,156,061                         7,070,267               
Guaranty/Security Deposits Payable 6,156,061                         7,070,267               

Deferred Credits/Unearned Income 257,600,296                     54,010,735             

LIABILITIES
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

Deferred Credits 22,791,528                       22,578,534             
Other Deferred Credits 22,791,528                       22,578,534             

Unearned Revenue/Income 234,808,767                     31,432,201             
Other Unearned Revenue/Income-donations 234,808,767                     31,432,201             

Provisions
Provisions 41,657,473                       -                          

Leave Benefitts Payable 41,657,473                       -                          

Other Payables 139,363,706                     134,245,976            

Other Payables 139,363,706                     134,245,976            
Retention Payables 13,028,179                       24,805,273             
Other Payables 126,335,527                     109,440,702            

Total Current Liabilities 752,082,318                     464,090,091            

Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities 402,434,296                     540,880,053            

Loans Payable 402,434,296                     540,880,053            
Loans Payable-Domestic 402,434,296                     540,880,053            

Trust Liabilities 388,875,157                     326,614,031            

Trust Liabilities 388,875,157                     326,614,031            
Customers' Deposit Payable 388,875,157                     326,614,031            

Other Payables 191,931,764                     217,471,801            

Other Payables 191,931,764                     217,471,801            
Operating Reserves 191,931,764                     217,471,801            

Total Non-Current Liabilities 983,241,218                     1,084,965,885         

Total Liabilites

Government Equity
Revaluation Surplus 818,465,818                     218,119,766            

Revaluation Surplus 818,465,818                     218,119,766            
Revaluation Surplus 818,465,818                     218,119,766            

Retained Earnings/(Deficit) 2,911,255,361                  2,658,812,067         

Retained Earnings/(Deficit) 2,911,255,361                  2,658,812,067         
Retained Earnings/(Deficit) 2,911,255,361                  2,658,812,067         

Total Equity 3,729,721,179                  2,876,931,833         

Total Liabilities and Equity 5,465,044,715                  4,425,987,808         

-                                   -                          

EQUITY
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Note* 2018
Income

Service and Business Income 21 1,865,547,778        
Shares, Grants and Donations 22 76,286,982             
Other Non-Operating Income 23 22,056,012             

Total Income 1,963,890,772        

Expenses 
Personnel Services 24 (569,094,603)          
Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses 25 (832,125,620)          
Financial Expenses 26 (37,773,744)            
Non-Cash Expenses 27 (197,758,018)          

Total Expenses (1,636,751,986)       

Income/(Loss) before Tax 327,138,786           
Income Tax Expenses/(Benefit) (1,104,750)              

Income/(Loss) after Tax 326,034,037           
Net Assistance/Subsidy/(Financial Assistance/Subsidy/Contribution) 28 (12,552,313)            

Net Income/(Loss) for the Period 313,481,724           

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2017

1,755,942,585     
118,800               

22,092,381          
1,778,153,766     

(529,786,335)      
(816,952,494)      

(30,525,481)        
(107,991,007)      

(1,485,255,317)   

292,898,449        
(747,430)             

292,151,019        
(11,706,319)        
280,444,700        

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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2018 2017
Income

Service and Business Income 
Service Income

Sewerage / Garbage Fees 18,658,427            17,824,939            
Total Service Income 18,658,427            17,824,939            

Business Income 
Rent/Lease Income 4,336,212              4,283,155              
Waterworks System Fee 1,810,933,063       1,711,501,260       
Fines and Penalties-Business Income 14,118,304            12,784,258            
Interest Income 17,501,772            9,548,972              

Total Business Income 1,846,889,352       1,738,117,645       

Total Service and Business Income 1,865,547,778       1,755,942,585       

Shares, Grants and Donations 
Grants and Donations 

Income from Grants and Donations in Cash 76,286,982            118,800                 
Total Grants and Donations 76,286,982            118,800                 

Total Shares, Grants and Donations 76,286,982            118,800                 

Other Non-Operating Income / (Loss)
Miscellaneous Income /(Loss)

Income/ (Loss) from Non-Utility Operations 4,949                     (1,850,874)             
Miscellaneous Income 22,051,062            23,943,255            

Total Other Non-Operating Income 22,056,012            22,092,381            

Total Revenue 1,963,890,772       1,778,153,766       

Expenses 
Personnel Services 

Salaries and Wages 
Salaries and Wages-Regular (169,814,167)        (164,489,853)         
Salaries and Wages-Casual/Contractual (67,743,976)          (65,866,679)           

Total Salaries and Wages (237,558,143)        (230,356,533)         

Other Compensation 
Personnel Economic Relief Allowance (PERA) (17,805,916)          (18,894,126)           
Representation Allowance (RA) (4,475,250)            (4,393,750)             
Transportation Allowance (TA) (4,475,250)            (4,398,750)             
Clothing/Uniform Allowance (4,468,720)            (3,173,094)             
Honoraria (4,790,796)            (3,901,506)             
Longevity Pay (10,524,673)          (11,147,095)           
Overtime and Night Pay (33,672,204)          (31,371,602)           
Year End Bonus (20,095,221)          (19,441,424)           
Cash Gift (3,696,500)            (3,847,500)             
Other Bonuses and Allowances (94,165,677)          (83,941,464)           

Total Other Compensation (198,170,207)        (184,510,312)         

Personnel Benefit Contributions 
Retirement and Life Insurance Premiums (29,139,149)          (28,719,153)           
PAG-IBIG Contributions (894,224)               (953,514)                
PhilHealth Contributions (2,847,211)            (2,542,188)             
Provident/Welfare Fund Contributions (34,034,470)          (33,108,406)           

Total Personnel Benefit Contributions (66,915,053)          (65,323,261)           

Total Personnel Benefit Contributions 
Retirement Gratuity (22,030,905)          (20,556,514)           

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Yearend
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Terminal Leave Benefits (28,256,240)          (12,724,952)           
Other Personnel Benefits (16,164,055)          (16,314,764)           

Total Other Personnel Benefits (66,451,200)          (49,596,230)           

Total Personnel Services (569,094,603)        (529,786,335)         

Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses 
Traveling Expenses 

Traveling Expenses-Local (1,189,482)            (1,316,174)             
Traveling Expenses-Foreign (949,313)               (1,279,351)             

Total Traveling Expenses (2,138,794)            (2,595,525)             

Training and Scholarship Expenses 
Training Expenses (1,869,348)            (2,014,804)             

Total Training and Scholarship Expenses (1,869,348)            (2,014,804)             

Supplies and Materials Expenses 
Office Supplies Expenses (6,445,782)            (4,170,432)             
Fuel, Oil and Lubricants (17,113,543)          (14,013,135)           
Chemicals and Filtering Supplies Expenses (6,337,205)            (6,816,816)             
Semi-Expendable Machinery and Equipment Expenses -                        (165,855)                
Semi-Expendable Furniture, Fixtures and Books Expenses (9,798)                   (38,622)                  
Other Supplies and Materials (88,355,305)          (100,297,441)         

Total Supplies and Materials Expenses (118,261,633)        (125,502,300)         

Utility Expenses 
Water Expenses (1,183,068)            (1,015,030)             
Electricity Expenses (13,944,146)          (12,630,796)           

Total Utility Expenses (15,127,214)          (13,645,826)           

Communication Expenses 
Telephone Expenses (2,473,412)            (3,053,391)             
Internet Subscription Expenses (2,629,613)            (3,011,461)             
Cable, Satellite, Telegraph and Radio Expenses (120,881)               (24,286)                  

Total Communication Expenses (5,223,907)            (6,089,138)             

Awards/Rewards, Prizes and Indemnities 
A wards/Rewards Expenses (5,101,170)            (5,414,833)             

Total AwardsfRewards, Prizes and Indemnities (5,101,170)            (5,414,833)             

Survey, Research, Exploration and Development Expenses 
Survey Expenses (7,750)                   (12,720)                  
Research, Exploration and Development Expenses (1,628,100)            -                         

Total Survey, Research, Exploration and Development Expenses (1,635,850)            (12,720)                  

Demolition/Relocation and Desilting/Dredging Expenses 
Demolition and Relocation Expenses -                        -                         
Desilting, Drilling and Dredging Expenses -                        (2,658,946)             

Total Demolition/Relocation and Desilting/Dredging Expenses -                        (2,658,946)             

Generation, Transmission and Distribution Expenses
Generation, Transmission and Distribution Expenses (582,972,273)        (583,714,304)         

Confidential, Intelligence and Extraordinary Expenses 
Extraordinary and Miscellaneous Expenses (4,576,476)            (3,149,271)             

Total Confidential, Intelligence and Extraordinary Expenses (4,576,476)            (3,149,271)             

Professional Services 

Awards
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Legal Services (273,500)               (152,500)                
Auditing Services (48,521)                 (20,201)                  
Consultancy Services (975,000)               (1,492,500)             
Other Professional Services (378,000)               (333,500)                

Total Professional Services (1,675,021)            (1,998,701)             

General Services 
Environmem/Sanitary Services (179,000)               (195,000)                
Janitorial Services (2,418,813)            (1,734,500)             
Security Services (41,481,900)          (37,966,705)           
Other General Services (15,225)                 (13,360)                  

Total General Services (44,094,938)          (39,909,565)           

Repairs and Maintenance 
Repairs and Maintenance-Land Improvements (42,383)                 (27,060)                  
Repairs and Maintenance-Buildings and Other Structures (3,873,216)            (4,163,380)             
Repairs and Maintenance-Machinery and Equipment (1,696,540)            (1,457,020)             
Repairs and Maintenance-Transportation Equipment (1,486,947)            (2,184,106)             
Repairs and Maintenance-Other Property, Plant and Equipment (933,575)               (1,188,208)             

Total Repairs and Maintenance (8,032,661)            (9,019,773)             

Taxes, Insurance Premiums and Other Fees 
Taxes, Duties and Licenses (1,225,011)            (1,246,775)             
Insurance Expenses (2,066,642)            (2,093,812)             

Total Taxes, Insurance Premiums and Other Fees (3,291,652)            (3,340,587)             

Labor and Wages 
Labor and Wages (243,509)               (228,307)                

Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses 
Advertising, Promotional and Marketing Expenses (6,267,730)            (3,888,013)             
Printing and Publication Expenses (140,800)               (122,519)                
Transportation and Delivery Expenses (2,409,568)            (2,192,440)             
Rent/Lease Expenses (2,117,369)            (1,330,981)             
Membership Dues and Contributions to Organizations (588,150)               (25,679)                  
Subscription Expenses (56,185)                 (55,203)                  
Donations (94,410)                 (891,119)                
Directors and Committee Members' Fees (2,162,044)            (2,147,793)             
Major Events and Conventions Expenses -                        (28,450)                  
Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses (24,044,918)          (6,975,698)             

Total Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses (37,881,173)          (17,657,895)           

Total Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses (832,125,620)        (816,952,494)         

Financial Expenses 
Financial Expenses 

Interest Expenses (37,770,678)          (30,522,031)           
Bank Charges (3,066)                   (3,450)                    

Total Financial Expenses (37,773,744)          (30,525,481)           

Non-Cash Expenses 
Depreciation 

Depreciation-Investment Property (1,579,754)            (1,192,080)             
Depreciation-Buildings and Other Structures (76,012,336)          (10,063,233)           
Depreciation-Machinery and Equipment (4,200,984)            (8,745,120)             
Depreciation-Transportation Equipment (8,406,031)            (7,754,027)             
Depreciation-Furniture, Fixtures and Books (1,943,787)            (804,584)                
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Depreciation - Plant-Utility Plant in Service (UPIS) (72,800,480)          (57,470,174)           
Depreciation - Other Property, Plant and Equipment (19,352,824)          (15,709,953)           

Total Depreciation (184,296,197)        (101,739,171)         

Amortization
Amortization-Intangible Assets (12,166,868)          (5,626,519)             

Total Amortization (12,166,868)          (5,626,519)             

Impairment Loss 
Impairment Loss-Loans and Receivables (1,182,491)            (582,594)                
lmpairment Loss-Inventories 

Total Impairment Loss (1,182,491)            (582,594)                

Losses
Loss on Foreign Exchange (FOREX) (112,463)               (42,723)                  

Total Losses (112,463)               (42,723)                  

Total Non-Cash Expenses (197,758,018)        (107,991,007)         

Total Current Operating Expenses (1,636,751,986)     (1,485,255,317)      

Surplus/(Deficit) from Current Operations 327,138,786          292,898,449          

Income/(Loss) Before Tax 327,138,786          292,898,449          
Income Tax Expense/(Benefit) (1,104,750)            (747,430)                
Income/(Loss) After Tax 326,034,037          292,151,019          

Financial Assistance/Subsidy/Contribution 
Financial Assistance to Local Government Units (12,352,313)          (11,606,319)           
Financial Assistance/Subsidy/Contribution-Others (200,000)               (100,000)                
Total Financial Assistance/Subsidy (12,552,313)          (11,706,319)           

Net Assistance/Subsidy/(Financial Assistance/Subsidy/Contribution (12,552,313)          (11,706,319)           

Net Income/(Loss) for the Period 313,481,724          280,444,700          

-                        



MCWD ANNUAL REPORT 2018 23

 Revaluation 
Surplus 

 Retained Earnings/ 
(Deficit)  Total 

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2016 183,997,770       2,375,120,073          2,559,117,843          

CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2017
Add/(Deduct):

Comprehensive Income for the year 280,444,700             280,444,700             
Prior Period Errors 4,449,865                 4,449,865                 
Other Adjusments 34,121,996         (1,202,572)                32,919,424               

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 218,119,766       2,658,812,067          2,876,931,833          

CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2018
Add/(Deduct):

Comprehensive Income for the year 313,481,724             313,481,724             
Prior Period Errors (61,038,429)              (61,038,429)              
Other Adjusments 600,346,051       600,346,051             

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 818,465,818       2,911,255,361          3,729,721,179          

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows

Collection of Income / Revenue 1,790,360,810       1,710,537,161        
Trust Receipts 70,357,584            80,102,965              
Other Receipts 320,422,520          279,691,100            

Total Cash Inflows 2,181,140,914       2,070,331,227        
Adjustment -                          -                           

Ajusted Cash Inflows 2,181,140,914       2,070,331,227        

Cash Outflows
Payment of Expenses 1,402,835,566       1,253,824,291        
Purchase of Inventories 110,103,888          78,358,618              
Remittance of Personnel Benefit Contributions and Mandatory Deductions 94,704,615            105,341,695            
Other Disbursements 112,249,858          151,792,529            

Total Cash Outflows 1,719,893,927       1,589,317,134        
Adjustments -                          -                           

Adjusted Cash Outflows 1,719,893,927       1,589,317,134        

Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Operating Activities 461,246,987          481,014,093            

CASH FLOWS FORM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows
Receipt of Interest Earned 18,749,078            9,452,794                

Total Cash Inflows 18,749,078            9,452,794                
Adjustments (Transfer of Funds from Restricted to Cash Account) -                          200,910,234            

Adjusted Cash Inflows 18,749,078            210,363,029            

Cash Outflows
Purchase/Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment 184,206,829          351,966,846            
Purchase/Acquisition of Investment(Transfer of Funds) -                          200,000,000            

Total Cash Outflows 184,206,829          551,966,846            
Adjustments

Adjusted Cash Outflows 184,206,829          551,966,846            

Ne Cash Provided by / (Used in ) Investing Activities (165,457,751)         (341,603,817)          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows
Proceeds from Domestic and Foreign Loans -                          246,900,362            

Total Cash Inflows -                          246,900,362            
Adjustments

Adjusted Cash Inflows -                          246,900,362            

Cash Outflows
Payment of Long-term Liabilities 118,476,810          111,593,940            
Payment of Interest on Loans and Other Financial Charges 38,285,532            30,522,031              

Total Cash Outflows 156,762,342          142,115,970            
Adjustments

Adjusted Cash Outflows 156,762,342          142,115,970            

Net Cash Provided by/(Used In) Financing Activities (156,762,342)         104,784,392            
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 139,026,894          244,194,668            
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 1,241,096,372       996,901,703            

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 1,380,123,266       1,241,096,372        

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018



MCWD ANNUAL REPORT 2018 25

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows

Collection of Income / Revenue 1,790,360,810   1,710,537,161 
Collection of service and business income 1,779,067,101   1,700,287,127 
Collection of other non-operating income 11,293,709        10,250,035      

Trust Receipts 70,357,584        80,102,965      
Receipt of Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Fund
Receipt of customers' deposits 67,228,539        77,750,807      
Collection of bidder's bond 3,129,046          2,352,158        

Other Receipts 320,422,520      279,691,100    
Receipt of refund of cash advances 701,035             834,905           
Receipt for payment of Service Connection Cost 60,235,410        72,929,258      
Receipt for payment of Power Cost Adjustment 173,820,907      145,627,297    
Receipt for payment of Purchased Water Adjustment 41,318,472        31,027,665      
Other miscellaneous receipts 44,346,696        29,271,975      

Total Cash Inflows 2,181,140,914   2,070,331,227 

Adjustment -                    -                   

Ajusted Cash Inflows 2,181,140,914   2,070,331,227 

Payment of Expenses 1,402,835,566   1,253,824,291 
Payment of personnel services 457,159,363      413,667,443    
Payment of maintenance and other operating expenses 945,676,203      840,156,848    

Purchase of Inventories 110,103,888      78,358,618      
Purchase of inventory held for consumption 110,103,888      78,358,618      

Remittance of Personnel Benefit Contributions and Mandatory Deductions 94,704,615        105,341,695    
Remittances of taxes withheld 28,033,809        34,488,978      
Remittance to GSIS/Pag-ibig/Philhealth/SSS 32,698,474        35,013,846      
Remittance of Provident/Welfare fund contribution 33,972,332        35,838,871      

Other Disbursements 112,249,858      151,792,529    
Payment for Local Government Revenue Share 8,053,872          9,504,216        
Remittance of VAT/Excise Tax Payments/Franchise Tax 97,104,914        112,972,016    
Other disbursements 7,091,071          29,316,298      

Total Cash Outflows 1,719,893,927   1,589,317,134 

Adjustments -                    -                   

Adjusted Cash Outflows 1,719,893,927   1,589,317,134 

Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Operating Activities 461,246,987      481,014,093    

CASH FLOWS FORM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows

Receipt of Interest Earned 18,749,078        9,452,794        

Total Cash Inflows 18,749,078        9,452,794        

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Adjustments (Transfer of Funds from Restricted to Cash Account) -                    200,910,234    

Adjusted Cash Inflows 18,749,078        210,363,029    

Cash Outflows

Purchase/Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment 184,206,829      351,966,846    
Purchase of Land 44,182               1,913,208        
Purchase of Machinery and equipment 6,143,894          18,919,058      
Purchase of transportation equipment 1,295,112          21,819,911      
Construction in progress 145,918,428      224,487,320    
Purchased of other property, plant and equipment 17,786,573        52,932,418      
Advances to Contractors 2,850,000          20,970,873      
Payment of retention fee to contractors 8,104,808          9,562,654        
Payment of other fees charged to projects 2,063,833          1,361,405        

Purchase/Acquisition of Investment(Transfer of Funds) -                    200,000,000    
Other Long-Term Investment 200,000,000    

Total Cash Outflows 184,206,829      551,966,846    

Adjustments

Adjusted Cash Outflows 184,206,829      551,966,846    

Ne Cash Provided by / (Used in ) Investing Activities (165,457,751)    (341,603,817)   

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows

Proceeds from Domestic and Foreign Loans -                    246,900,362    
Proceeds from domestic loans 246,900,362    

Total Cash Inflows -                    246,900,362    

Adjustments

Adjusted Cash Inflows -                    246,900,362    

Cash Outflows

Payment of Long-term Liabilities 118,476,810      111,593,940    
Payment of domestic loans 118,476,810      111,593,940    

Payment of Interest on Loans and Other Financial Charges 38,285,532        30,522,031      

Total Cash Outflows 156,762,342      142,115,970    

Adjustments -                    -                   

Adjusted Cash Outflows 156,762,342      142,115,970    

Net Cash Provided by/(Used In) Financing Activities (156,762,342)    104,784,392    

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 139,026,894      244,194,668    
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2018 2017

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
DETAILED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1 1,241,096,372   996,901,703    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 1,380,123,266   1,241,096,372 

Original Final

RECEIPTS
Tax Revenue
Services and Business Income 1,939,080,096       1,960,447,288       1,790,360,810      
Shares, Grants and Donations 51,130,784            51,130,784            
Gains 18,749,078            
Others 925,376,645          931,587,603          390,780,104          
Total Receipts 2,915,587,525       2,943,165,675       2,199,889,992      

PAYMENTS
Personnel Services 567,569,140          629,575,904          551,863,978          
Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses 1,229,089,551       1,227,068,043       1,055,780,091      
Capital Outlay 1,211,500,987       1,490,960,425       184,206,829          
Financial Expenses  (Principal + Interest) 169,750,482          169,750,482          156,762,342          
Others 116,656,735          83,656,735            112,249,858          
Total Payments 3,294,566,895       3,601,011,589       2,060,863,098      

NET RECEIPTS/PAYMENTS (378,979,370)         (657,845,914)         139,026,894          

PARTICULARS
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts 

on Comparable 
Basis

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

170,086,478          
51,130,784            

(18,749,078)          
540,807,499          
743,275,683          

77,711,926            
171,287,953          

1,306,753,595      
12,988,140            

(28,593,123)          
1,540,148,491      

(796,872,808)        

Difference Final 
Budget Vs. Actual

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018



1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Financial Statements of Metropolitan Cebu Water 
District (MCWD) were authorized for issue on February 
7, 2019 as shown in the Statement of Management 
Responsibility for Financial Statements signed by Engr. 
Jose Eugenio B. Singson, Jr., the head of the entity.

In 1910, the Cebu Municipal Council created the Osmeña 
Waterworks System (OWS), which was the first and only 
major water source used to operate and manage the 
water facility of the City.  However, due to the rising 
water demand of the people in 1970’s, which OWS failed 
to address coupled by its recurring financial losses, a 
transition management was created. 

Thus, when Presidential Decree 198 or the Local Water 
Utilities Act of 1973 was created promising loans, trainings 
and other assistance to autonomous water districts, the 
Cebu City Government, under the mayorship of Engr. 
Eulogio Borres, approved Resolution No. 873 on May 9, 
1974 to create Metropolitan Cebu Water District (MCWD), 
the “Water District”.  In turn, Mayor Borres turned over 
OWS assets and facilities that served as its initial capital.  It 
started its full commercial operations on February 1, 1975.

In March 1992, the Supreme Court declared all water 
districts as  Government - Owned and - Controlled 
Corporations (GOCC). Hence, MCWD stopped operating 
as a Quasi-Public Corporation.  Everything that has to be 
done must conform to Civil Service Commission (CSC), 
the Department of Budget of Management (DBM), and 
the Commission on Audit (COA) rules and regulations. 
   
MCWD continues to be true to its Mission-Vision to protect 
and sustain Metro Cebu’s limited water resources, while 
living out its commitment to provide safe, potable and 
affordable water to Metro Cebu.  Today, MCWD provides 
water to the cities of Cebu, Talisay, Mandaue and Lapu-
Lapu, and the municipalities of Consolacion, Liloan, 
Compostela, and Cordova.  

The District was registered with the Bureau of Internal 
Revenue on February 13, 1997 as a GOCC.  Its principal 
office is located at corner Lapu-lapu and Magallanes 
Streets, San Roque, Cebu City.  

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF 
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements have been prepared in 
compliance with the Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS) prescribed by the Commission on Audit 
through COA Resolution No. 2015-003 dated April 6, 2015.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied 
throughout the years presented.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
basis of historical cost, unless stated otherwise. The 
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using the direct 
method.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Philippine Peso (P), which is also the country’s functional 
currency.

Amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso, unless 
otherwise stated. The preparation of Financial Statements 
in compliance with the adopted PFRS requires the use of 
certain accounting estimates. It also requires the entity 
to exercise judgment in applying the entity’s accounting 
policies. The areas where significant judgments and 
estimates have been made in preparing the Financial 
Statements and their effects are disclosed in the notes.

METROPOLITAN CEBU WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of Accounting

The Water District’s financial statements are prepared on 
an accrual basis in accordance with the PFRS.

3.2 Financial Instruments

a. Financial assets

i. Initial Recognition

Financial assets within the scope of PFRS 9- Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified 
as financial assets at fair value through income or loss, 
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables or 
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The 
Water District determines the classification of its financial 
assets at initial recognition.

Purchases or sales of financial assets those require delivery 
of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) 
are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Water District commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Water District’s financial assets include: cash and cash 
equivalents; trade and other trade receivables; loans and 
other loans receivables; quoted and unquoted financial 
instruments; and derivative financial instruments.

ii. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends 
on their classification. 

1. Financial assets at fair value through income or loss

Financial assets at fair value through income or loss include 
financial assets held for trading and financial assets 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through 
income or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for 
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or 
repurchasing in the near term. 

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, 
are also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial 
assets at fair value through income or loss are carried in the 
Statement of Financial Position at fair value with changes 
in fair value recognized in income or loss.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, no financial assets 
have been classified at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVPL).

2. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, 
such financial assets are subsequently measured at an 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less 
impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the 
income or loss.

Included in this category are the Water District’s accounts 
receivables, due from related parties and other non-
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related parties, and refundable deposits.

3. Held to Maturity (HTM) Investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-
maturity wherein the Water District has the positive intention 
and ability to hold to maturity.  

After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in income or loss. 
  
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, no financial assets have 
been classified as HTM investments.

iii. Derecognition

The Water District derecognizes a financial asset or where 
applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of Water 
District of similar financial assets when: 

1. the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expired or waived; and 

2. the Water District has transferred its contractual rights to 
receive the cash flows of the financial assets, or retains the 
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial 
assets but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the 
cash flows to one or more recipients in an arrangement 
that meets the conditions set forth in PFRS 9-Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement; and either the 
entity has: 

• transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset; or 

• neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but has 
transferred the control of the asset 

iv. Impairment of Financial Assets

The Water District assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a 
group of financial asset is deemed to be impaired if and 
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that 
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include the following 
indicators:

1. The borrowers or a group of borrowers are experiencing 
significant financial difficulty
2. Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
3.The probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganization
4. Observable data indicates that there is a measurable 
decrease in estimated future cash flows, such as changes in 
arrears or economic condition that correlate with defaults.

v. Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Water 
District first assesses whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets 
that are not individually significant. If the Water District 
determines that no objective evidence of impairment 
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 
is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a 

collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). The present value of the estimated future 
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest 
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss 
is the current effective interest rate. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account and the amount of the 
loss is recognized in income or loss. Loans together with 
the associated allowance are written off when there is 
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral 
has been realized or transferred to the Water District. 
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, 
the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or 
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future 
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to 
finance costs in income or loss.

b. Financial liabilities

i. Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of PFRS 9 are classified 
as financial liabilities at fair value through income or 
loss, or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The entity 
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at 
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value 
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Water District’s financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables, bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings,  
and financial guarantee contracts. 

ii. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classification.

1. Financial liabilities at fair value through income or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through income or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through income or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they 
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. 
This category includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Group that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by 
PFRS 9. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized 
in income or loss.

2. Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and 
losses are recognized in income or loss when the liabilities 
are derecognized as well through the effective interest 
method amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

iii. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation 
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under the liability expires or is discharged or cancelled. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in income or loss. 

c. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement 
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

d. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded 
in active markets at each reporting date is determined 
by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price 
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for 
short positions), without any deduction for transaction 
costs.

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand 
and cash in bank, deposits on call and highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement 
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts.

3.4 Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. 
To the extent that inventory is received through non-
exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), 
the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of 
acquisition. 

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and conditions are accounted for, as follows: 

a. Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted 
average cost method 

b. Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct 
materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing 
overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but 
excluding borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower 
of cost and net realizable value. However, to the extent 
that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no 
charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is 
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement 
cost. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale, exchange, or distribution. 

Inventories are recognized as an expense when 
deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary 
course of operations of the Water District.

3.5 Investment Property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, 
including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes 
the replacement cost of components of an existing 
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if 
the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs 
of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property. 

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange 
transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of 
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment 
property is measured using the cost model and is 
depreciated over its estimated useful life of 30 years. 

Investment property is derecognized either when it has 
been disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefit or service potential 
is expected from its disposal. The difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset is recognized in the income or loss in the period of 
derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only 
when there is a change in use.

The Water District uses the cost model for the measurement 
of investment property after initial recognition

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method 
over its estimated useful life. 

3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

a. Recognition

An item is recognized as property, plant and equipment 
(PPE) if it meets the characteristics and recognition criteria 
as PPE.

The characteristics of PPE are as follows:

i. tangible items;

ii. are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes; 
and

iii. are expected to be used during more than one reporting 
period. 

An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if:

i. it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the item will flow to the entity;

ii. the cost or fair value of the item can be measured 
reliably; and

iii. the cost is at least P15,000.00.

b. Measurement at Recognition

An item recognized as PPE is measured at cost. 

A PPE acquired through non-exchange transaction is 
measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

The cost of the PPE is the cash price equivalent or, for PPE 
acquired through non cash-exchange transaction its cost 
is its fair value as at recognition date.

Cost includes the following:

i. its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates;

ii. expenditure that is directly attributable to acquisition of 
the items; and

iii. initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the 
obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item 
is acquired, or as a consequence of having used the 
item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period.

c. Measurement after Recognition

After recognition, all PPE are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.



MCWD ANNUAL REPORT 2018 33

When significant parts of PPE are required to be replaced 
at intervals, the Water District recognizes such parts as 
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates 
them accordingly. Likewise, when a major repair/
replacement is done, its cost is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the PPE as a replacement if the recognition 
criteria are satisfied. 

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized as 
expense in income or loss as incurred.

d. Depreciation

Each part of an item of PPE with a cost that is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated 
separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognized as 
expense unless it is included in the cost of another asset.

i. Initial recognition of depreciation

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use 
such as when it is in the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management.

For simplicity and to avoid proportionate computation, the 
depreciation is for one month if the PPE is available for use 
on or before the 15th of the month. However, if the PPE is 
available for use after the 15th of the month, depreciation 
is for the succeeding month. 

ii. Depreciation Method

The straight line method of depreciation is adopted 
unless another method is more appropriate for the Entity’s 
operation. The residual value of the PPE is deducted in 
computing for its depreciation.

iii. Estimated useful life

The Water District uses the life span of PPE prescribed by 
Local Water Utilities Administration in determining the 
specific estimated useful life for each asset based on its 
experience.

iv. Residual value

The Water District uses a residual value equivalent to at 
least five percent (5%) of the cost of the PPE.

e. Impairment

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable 
amount, or recoverable service amount, if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount or recoverable service amount. 

f. Derecognition

The Water District derecognizes items of PPE and/or any 
significant part of an asset upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits or service potential is expected from its 
continuing use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in the income or loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

3.7 Leases

a. Water District as a lessor 

i. Finance lease

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item 
to the Water District.

Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the 
commencement of the lease at the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the 

future minimum lease payments. The Water District also 
recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception 
of the lease. The liability recognized is measured at the 
present value of the future minimum lease payments at 
initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in 
income or loss.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated 
over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the Water District will obtain 
ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the 
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

ii. Operating Lease

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the leased item to the Water District. 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an 
operating expense in income or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

b. Water District as a lessor

i. Finance Lease

The Water District recognizes lease payments receivable 
under a finance lease as assets in the statement of 
financial position. The assets are presented as receivable 
at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

The finance revenue is recognized based on a pattern 
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net 
investment in the finance lease.

ii. Operating lease

Leases in which the Water District does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an 
asset are classified as operating leases. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognized over the lease term. Rent received 
from an operating lease is recognized as income on a 
straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents 
are recognized as revenue in the period in which they 
are earned.

The depreciation policies for PPE are applied to similar 
assets leased by the entity.

3.8 Intangible Assets

a. Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when the items are 
identifiable non-monetary assets without physical 
substance; it is probable that the expected future 
economic benefits or service potential that are 
attributable to the assets will flow to the entity; and the 
cost or fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially 
recognized at cost.

If payment for an intangible asset is deferred beyond 
normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent. 
The difference between this amount and the total 
payments is recognized as interest expense over the 
period of credit unless it is capitalized in accordance 
with the capitalization treatment permitted in PAS 23, 
Borrowing Costs.

b. Subsequent expenditure on an acquired in-process 
research and development project
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Subsequent expenditure on an in-process research 
or development project acquired separately and 
recognized as an intangible asset is:

i. recognized as an expense when incurred if it is research 
expenditure;

ii. recognized as an expense when incurred if it is 
development expenditure that does not satisfy the 
criteria for recognition as an intangible asset; and

iii. added to the carrying amount of the acquired 
in-process research or development project if it is 
development expenditure that satisfies the recognition 
criteria for intangible assets.

c. Intangible assets acquired through non-exchange 
transaction

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange 
transaction is their fair value at the date these were 
acquired.

d. Internally Generated Intangible Assets

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding 
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and 
expenditure is reflected in income or loss in the period in 
which the expenditure is incurred.

e. Recognition of an expense

Expenditure on an intangible item is recognized as 
expense when it is incurred unless it forms part of the cost 
of an intangible asset that meets the recognition criteria 
of an intangible asset.

f. Subsequent measurement

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either 
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with a finite life are 
amortized over their useful lives. 

The straight line method is adopted in the amortization of 
the expected pattern of consumption of the expected 
future economic benefits or service potential. 

An intangible asset with indefinite useful life is not to be 
amortized.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or intangible 
assets not yet available for use are assessed for 
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication 
that the assets may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method, for 
an intangible asset with a finite useful life, are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period. 

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the 
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and 
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortization expense on an intangible asset with a finite 
life is recognized in income or loss as the expense category 
that is consistent with the nature of the intangible asset. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognized in the income or loss when the asset 
is derecognized.

3.9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets

a. Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Water District has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits or service potential will 

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Water District expects some or all of a provision to 
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, 
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only 
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
income statement, net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date, and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation, the provisions are reversed.

b. Contingent liabilities

The Water District does not recognize a contingent liability, 
but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to 
financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits or service 
potential is remote.

c. Contingent assets

The Water District does not recognize a contingent asset, 
but discloses details of a possible asset whose existence is 
contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Water District in the notes to financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that 
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial 
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow 
of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the 
asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the 
related revenue are recognized in the financial statements 
of the period in which the change occurs.

3.10 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Water District recognizes the effects of changes in 
accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes in 
accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective 
application is impractical.

The Water District recognizes the effects of changes  
accounting estimates prospectively through income or loss. 

The Water District corrects material prior period errors 
retrospectively in the first set of financial statements 
authorized for issue after their discovery by: 

a. Restating the comparative amounts for prior period(s) 
presented in which the error occurred; or 

b. If the error occurred before the earliest prior period 
presented, restating the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and net assets/equity for the earliest prior period 
presented.

3.11 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognized by 
applying the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the transaction date.

At each reporting date:
a. Foreign currency monetary items are translated using 
the closing rate; 

b. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and 

c. Nonmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences arising (a) on the settlement of 
monetary items, or (b) on translating monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they are translated on 
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initial recognition during the period or in previous financial 
statements, are recognized in income or loss in the period 
in which they arise, except as those arising on a monetary 
item that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in 
a foreign operation.

3.12 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

a. Recognition and measurement of assets from non-
exchange transactions

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction, 
other than services in-kind, that meets the definition of an 
asset are recognized as an asset if the following criteria are 
met:

i. It is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity; 
and

ii. The fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

An asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction 
is initially measured at its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.

b. Recognition of revenue from non-exchange transactions

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction 
recognized as an asset is recognized as revenue, except 
to the extent that a liability is also recognized in respect of 
the same inflow.

As the Water District satisfies a present obligation 
recognized as a liability in respect to an inflow of resources 
from a non-exchange transaction recognized as an asset, it 
reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognized and 
recognizes an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

c. Measurement of revenue from non-exchange 
transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is measured at 
the amount of the increase in net assets recognized by the 
entity, unless a corresponding liability is recognized.

d. Measurement of liabilities on initial recognition from non-
exchange transactions

The amount recognized as a liability in a non-exchange 
transaction is the best estimate of the amount required to 
settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

e. Taxes

Taxes and the related fines and penalties are recognized 
when collected or when these are measurable and legally 
collectible. The related refunds, including those that are 
measurable and legally collectible, are deducted from the 
recognized tax revenue.

f. Fees and fines not related to taxes

The Water District recognizes revenue from fees and fines, 
except those related to taxes, when earned and the asset 
recognition criteria are met. Deferred income is recognized 
instead of revenue if there is a related condition attached 
that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount. 

Other non-exchange revenue are recognized when it 
is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity 
and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

g. Gifts and donations

The Water District recognizes assets and revenue from gifts 
and donations when it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the 
fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. 

Goods in-kind are recognized as assets when the goods are 
received, or there is a binding arrangement to receive the 

goods. If goods in-kind are received without conditions 
attached, revenue is recognized immediately. If 
conditions are attached, a liability is recognized, which is 
reduced and revenue recognized as the conditions are 
satisfied. 

On initial recognition, gifts and donations including 
goods in-kind are measured at their fair value as at the 
date of acquisition, which are ascertained by reference 
to an active market, or by appraisal. An appraisal of the 
value of an asset is normally undertaken by a member 
of the valuation profession who holds a recognized and 
relevant professional qualification. For many assets, the 
fair values are ascertained by reference to quoted prices 
in an active and liquid market.

h. Transfers

The Water District recognizes an asset in respect of transfers 
when the transferred resources meet the definition of an 
asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset, 
except those arising from services in-kind.

i. Services in-kind

Services in-kind are not recognized as asset and revenue 
considering the complexity of the determination of and 
recognition of asset and revenue and the eventual 
recognition of expenses.

j. Transfers from other government entities

Revenue from non-exchange transactions with other 
government entities and the related assets are measured 
at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the 
asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is 
free from conditions and it is probable that the economic 
benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow 
to the Water District and can be measured reliably.

3.13 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

a. Measurement of revenue

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable.

b. Rendering of services

The Water District recognizes revenue from rendering of 
services by reference to the stage of completion when 
the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. 
The stage of completion is measured by reference to 
labor hours incurred to date as a percentage of total 
estimated labor hours. 

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured 
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the 
expenses incurred are recoverable.

c. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods 
and when the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow 
to the Water District.

d. Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield 
method. The effective yield discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method 
applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine 
interest income for each period.

e. Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions are recognized when the 
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Water District’s right to receive payments is established.

f. Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases on 
investment property is accounted for on a straight-line 
basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

g. Royalties

Royalties are recognized as they are earned in 
accordance with the substance of the relevant 
agreement.

3.14 Budget Information

The annual budget is prepared on a cash basis and is 
published in the government website.

A separate Statement of Comparison of Budget and 
Actual Amounts (SCBAA) is prepared since the budget 
and the financial statements are not prepared on 
comparable basis. The SCBAA is presented showing the 
original and final budget and the actual amounts on 
comparable basis to the budget. 

3.15 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

a. Impairment of cash-generating assets

At each reporting date, the Water District assesses whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the Water District estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Where the carrying amount of an asset or the cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. 

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Water 
District estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
recoverable amount. 

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only 
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so 
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in 
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in income or loss.

b. Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The Water District assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is an indication that a non-cash-generating asset 
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Water 
District estimates the asset’s recoverable service amount. 

An asset’s recoverable service amount is the higher of the 
non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable service amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable service 
amount. The Water District classifies assets as cash-
generating assets when those assets are held with the 
primary objective generating a commercial return. 
Therefore, non-cash-generating assets would be those 
assets from which the Water District does not intend (as its 
primary objective) to realize a commercial return.

3.16 Related Parties

The Water District regards a related party as a person or an 
entity with the ability to exert control individually or jointly, 
or to exercise significant influence over the Water District, 
or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related 
parties and comprise the members of the Planning and 
Management Committee of the Water District. 

As of December 31, 2018, no related party transaction is 
recognized in the books.

3.17 Employee Benefits

The employees of the Water District are members of the 
Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) which 
provides life and retirement insurance coverage. 

The Water District recognizes the undiscounted amount of 
short term employee benefits, like salaries, wages, bonuses, 
allowance, etc., as expense unless capitalized, and as a 
liability after deducting the amount paid.

3.18 Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with PFRS requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reporting amounts of assets and 
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of the revenue and expenses during the period. 
Items requiring the use of significant estimates include the 
useful life of a capital asset, estimated employee benefits, 
rates for amortization, impairment of assets, and accrual of 
expenses. 

Estimates are based on the best information available at 
the time of preparation of the financial statements and are 
reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes 
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

4.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Water District adopted the new accounting policy on 
the recognition of the grants received in the year 2018. 

5. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The Water District has determined the prior period 
adjustments of P61,038,429.35 for calendar year ended 
December 31, 2018 and P4,449,865.40 for the calendar 
year ended December 31, 2017.

As a result, the prior period adjustments affected the prior 
year’s accumulated income/(loss) and cumulative effect 
on beginning accumulated income/(loss) for the current 
year. 
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Cash equivalents are investments that can readily be converted into cash. Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
cash on hand and cash in bank, deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value. These short-term investments are invested in the Development Bank of the Philippines and in the 
Land Bank of the Philippines.

All collections of the water district are promptly deposited in the depository banks. The cash on hand at the end of 
the year are those collections that remain as deposit in transit, crediting to the bank accounts at the beginning of 
the succeeding year.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

7. INVESTMENTS
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8.RECEIVABLES
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9. INVENTORIES

This account is the two-storey building owned by the Water District which was leased out to Prince Warehouse 
Club for a fifteen (15)-year period under an operating lease contract.  This property is among the collateral 
securities mortgaged to the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP).

For the calendar year-ended December 31, 2017, the balance is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment account is composed of the following:
As at December 31, 2018

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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This account is composed of the following:

On March 17, 2006, a contract of loan was entered with DBP to refinance the existing long-term loans with LWUA.  
Under the terms and conditions of the contract, this loan shall be secured by a real estate mortgage consisting of 
land and building.  Documentary stamp tax amounting to P 2,503,849.55 was paid on March 14, 2006. Total land 
area put up as collateral for the loan is 8,453 square meters.

On July 5, 1991, some properties were appraised by Asian Appraisal Co. Inc., an independent appraiser.  On the 
said date, the properties were assessed to have a sound value of P 694,403,360 which resulted to an appraisal 
increment of P 575,535,327. 

The net appraisal increment that resulted from the revaluation in 1991 was credited to the account “Revaluation 
Increment in Property” and is shown under “Capitalization” in the Balance Sheet.  Depreciation is computed based 
on the carrying value of the property using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

On December 31, 2005 and 2006, accumulated depreciation of revaluation surplus amounting to P 391,537,558 
and P 390,457,797, respectively, was closed to retained earnings in accordance to SFAS/IAS No. 16 “Piecemeal 
Realization of Revaluation Surplus”.  Starting 2007, the new balance of the Revaluation Increment in Property is 
P183,997,770.

On year 2016, some of the real properties were appraised by an independent appraiser. But because of the lack of 
data of the real cost of the properties at the time they were acquired, some of the properties that were appraised 
were recorded in the books in 2016 while appraisal increase of the rest of the properties were then recorded in 2018.

As at December 31, 2017

12. INTANGIBLES

Changes
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For the calendar year-ended December 31, 2018, the balance of this account is as follows:

14.1 Payables
    This account consists of the following:

14.2 Loans Payable
    This account consists of the following:     
 
 
 
 
 

The loans with the Local Water Utilities Administration (LWUA) were credit lines that were obtained to finance the 
various projects of the Water District.  Interest rates from these loans ranged from 10% to 14% per annum and were 
supposed to be amortized over a period from 20 to 26 years.  

On March 17, 2006, a contract of loan was entered with Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) in order to 
refinance the existing long-term loans from Local Water Utilities Administration (LWUA).  Salient terms and conditions 
of the contract are the following:

a. Term - 15 years to commence on the month following the release of the loan;
b. Interest rate - 8.5% per annum computed using the annuity method;
c. Interest differential/savings to be deposited to an Escrow Account;
d. Loan to be secured by a real estate mortgage. 

However, starting April 2015, DBP has lowered the interest rate to 6%.

On September 21, 2016, DBP has approved to extend in favor of the Water District an additional term loan in the 
principal amount of P600,000,000.00. Terms and conditions of the contract are as follows:

a. Term –15 years, inclusive of two (2) years grace period payable in one hundred fifty six (156) monthly
 amortization to commence at the end of the 25th month from the date of the initial drawdown;
b. Interest rate – 6% per annum computed using the annuity method;
c. Loan to be secured by a real estate mortgage.

The first drawdown of the loan was on April 2017 while the second drawdown was on December 2017 in the amount 
of P6,582,730.19 and P240,317,632.17, respectively. No additional drawdown of the loan was made in the year 2018.

13. OTHER ASSETS

14. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
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14.3 Tax Refunds Payable
 This account consists of the following:

15. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES
 This account is composed of the following:

Due to LGUs account comprised of revenue share payable to the different Local Government Units for water 
extracted from their respective jurisdictions in accordance with the Local Government Code.

The unearned revenue is the amount recorded by the water district for all the grants received by the water district 
from Japan International Cooperation Agency and from LWUA.

 Amount set-up as reserve for retirement benefits is based on the existing MCWD Retirement Plan with respect 
to those who are already entitled thereto. This is intended for the employees who were hired prior to April 1993.

16. TRUST LIABILITIES
 This account is composed of the following:

17. DEFERRED CREDIT/UNEARNED REVENUE
 This account is composed of the following:

18. PROVISIONS 
 This account is composed of the following:

19. OTHER PAYABLES 
 This account is composed of the following:

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

MCWD has a present obligation to the Cebu City Government for Real Property Taxes of real properties  situated 
within the latter’s jurisdiction. These properties became the subject of foreclosure proceedings in 2012. The total 
delinquency amounted to P100 million as of July 2015. However, questions arose as to the taxability of some 
properties as they have been declared as watersheds and therefore, exempt while  others have different other 
claimants or owners. Negotiations are on-going as to the settlement of this obligation.

a)
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Franchise Tax Liability for the fiscal year 2003 payable to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) had a pending 
resolution with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) and the former is now awaiting the resolution. MCWD appealed that 
the interest and surcharges be condoned However, on April 2014, a decision from the CTA was released and MCWD 
is liable for the  amount of P 28,645,421.74. Recently, MCWD filed a Motion for Reconsideration on the decision of 
CTA  and the former is now waiting resolution of this matter.

Another Franchise Tax Liability is for the fiscal year 2000 where MCWD received a Preliminary Assessment  Notice for 
alleged tax deficiencies in income tax, franchise and value added tax.  Secretary of Justice  rendered its Decision 
on April 23, 2010 where MCWD was declared exempt from payment of income tax  from gross income pursuant to 
Section 32(b)(7)(b) of the National Internal Revenue Code of 1997, exempt from value added tax, not liable to pay 
surcharge and, interest, and compromise penalty on the  deficiency taxes but is liable  to pay BIR for franchise tax 
of two percent (2%) of its gross receipts in the  amount of P13,095,858.26 (net of the advance payment made by 
MCWD).

21.SERVICE AND BUSINESS INCOME 
 This account consists of the following:

22.SHARES, GRANTS AND DONATIONS 
 This account consists of the following:

23. NON-OPERATING INCOME, GAIN OR LOSSES
 This account consists of the following:

24. PERSONNEL SERVICES 
 24.1 Salaries and Wages
 This account consists of the following:

b)



MCWD ANNUAL REPORT 201844

24.2 Other Compensation
 This account consists of the following:

24.3 Personnel Benefit Contribution
 This account consists of the following:

24.4 Other Personnel Benefits
 This account consists of the following:

25. MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
       25.1 Traveling Expenses
     This account consists of the following:

 25.2 Training Expenses
       This account consists of the following:

 25.3 Supplies and Materials Expenses
       This account consists of the following:
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25.5 Communication Expenses
 This account consists of the following:

25.6 Awards/Rewards, Prizes and Indemnities
 This account consists of the following:

25.7 Survey, Research, Exploration and Development Expenses
 This account consists of the following:

25.8 Demolition, Relocation and Desilting/Drilling/Dredging Expenses
 This account consists of the following:

25.9 Generation, Transmission and Distribution Expenses
 This account consists of the following:

25.10 Confidential, Intelligence and Extraordinary Expenses
 This account consists of the following:

25.11 Professional Services
 This account consists of the following:

25.12 General Services
 This account consists of the following: 

Internet Subscription Expenses
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25.15 Labor and Wages
 This account consists of the following:

25.16 Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses
 This account consists of the following:

26. FINANCIAL EXPENSES 
 This account is composed of the following:

27. NON-CASH EXPENSES 
 27.1 Depreciation 
 This account is composed of the following:

25.13 Repairs and Maintenance
 This account consists of the following:

25.14 Taxes, Insurance Premiums and Other Fees
 This account consists of the following:
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27.2 Amortization
 This account is composed of the following:

27.3 Impairment Loss
 This account is composed of the following:

27.4 Losses
 This account is composed of the following:

The key management personnel of the Water District are the General Manager, the Members of the  
Governing Body, and the members of the Senior Management Group. The governing body consists of  
members appointed by the Mayor. The senior management group consists of the Assistant General Manager 
for Finance, Assistant General Manager for Administration, Assistant General Manager for  Operations, 
Assistant General Manager for Pipelines Maintenance and the Department Managers

The aggregate remuneration of members of the governing body and the number of members determined 
on a fulltime equivalent basis receiving remuneration within this category, are:

a.

b.

The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued on November 25, 2010 Revenue Regulation 15-2010 regarding 
the provision of additional disclosures in the notes to financial statements on information on taxes, duties, 
and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

In compliance with the requirements set forth by the aforementioned regulation, the Water District reported 
the following types of taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued for the year ended December 31, 
2018:

28. NET ASSISTANCE/SUBSIDY/(FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE/SUBSIDY/CONTRIBUTION)
 This account is composed of the following:

29. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

30. SUPPLEMENTARY TAX INFORMATION UNDER REVENUE REGULATION NO. 15-  2010
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30.1 Value-Added Tax (VAT)
 This account consists of the following:

30.2 Withholding Taxes
 This account consists of the following:

30.3 All Other Taxes
 This Account consists of the following:

31. Reclassification
 Certain accounts were reclassified to conform to the 2018 financial statements presentations.

—oOo—
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